

Minutes of a meeting of the Bradford and Airedale Health and Wellbeing Board held on Tuesday, 17 April 2018 in Committee Room 1 - City Hall, Bradford

Commenced	10.10 am
Concluded	12.00 pm

PRESENT

Members of the Board -

MEMBER	REPRESENTING
Councillor Susan Hinchcliffe	Leader of Bradford Metropolitan District Council (Chair)
Councillor Val Slater	Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing
Kersten England	Chief Executive of Bradford Metropolitan District Council
Helen Hirst	Bradford City, Bradford Districts and Airedale, Wharfedale and Craven Clinical Commissioning Groups
Bev Maybury	Strategic Director Health and Wellbeing
Michael Jameson	Strategic Director of Children's Services
Sam Keighley	Bradford Assembly Representing the Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector
Sarah Hutchinson	HealthWatch
Sarah Muckle	Interim Director of Public Health

Also in attendance: Geraldine Howley (InCommunities), Scott Bissett (West Yorkshire Police), Martin Speed (West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue), Steve Hartley (Strategic Director, Place)

Apologies: Councillor Jackie Whiteley, Dr Andy Withers, Dr James Thomas, Dr Akram Khan, Bridget Fletcher, Clive Kay, Nicola Lees and Dr Richard Haddad

Councillor Hinchcliffe in the Chair

30. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

In the interest of transparency all those who were on the Bradford Economic Partnership disclosed an interest in Minute 32.

Action: Interim City Solicitor

31. INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS

There were no appeals submitted by the public to review decisions to restrict documents.

32. SHARED PRIORITIES BETWEEN THE JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY FOR BRADFORD AND AIREDALE AND THE ECONOMIC STRATEGY FOR BRADFORD DISTRICT

The Strategic Director, Health and Wellbeing submitted **Document "N"** which summarised the main focus of the District's new Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and its new Economic Strategy. It considered areas of crossover, connection and shared priorities, highlighted potential opportunities for joint working. The priorities of the 2016-2020 District Plan for Bradford and Airedale had informed both strategies.

It was reported that there were clear links and shared priorities and opportunities between the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the new Economic Strategy. Some of the joint challenges across the strategies included improving wellbeing, tackling poor air quality and improving housing supply and quality. Links between Public Health and the Place Department's Planning Teams had been strengthened to ensure that opportunities to improve health and wellbeing were considered in new housing, business and neighbourhood developments. The work to deliver the Health and Wellbeing Strategy would support the aims of the Economic Strategy.

The Board were informed that the Economic Strategy would help to deliver inclusive and sustainable growth of the economy, supporting entrepreneurship and bringing the better, higher skilled jobs and opportunities that would help to improve people's standards of living, enabling people to live in better quality housing and to lead healthier lives.

Members were informed that the targets for the Economic Strategy included increasing the value of the district economy by £4billion, getting 20,000 more people into work and 48,000 more people with NVQ3 Level Skills.

Members of the Board commented on the following:

- A manufacturing event was being held in the Autumn
- At the centre of the Northern Powerhouse and the UK, Bradford's economic growth was critical to the wider economic success of the Leeds City Region and the UK.
- The importance of a positive narrative regarding the economic progress was described; this would require the collation and sharing of good news stories to build momentum amongst stakeholders including businesses and investors.
- In addition to a compelling narrative the Board noted the importance of





data to measure the impact of the collective action inspired by the Economic Strategy.

- Would like to see statistics on the number of objectives being achieved such as acquiring 48,000 more people with NVQ Level 3 Skills.
- Up-skilling people in Bradford and retaining talent to work and live in Bradford was important.
- Health and wellbeing of the workforce was an important consideration.
- Small businesses were using the apprenticeship levy to up-skill their staff; the levy made training affordable; how could the work in this area be measured?
- The key elements of the strategy interconnected; up-skilling people; providing a fantastic place to live; businesses had a big role to play in ensuring people had good incomes; importance of good transport links for people to get to work, transport and digital connectivity was crucial to strengthen the global links and access new markets; importance of telling good news stories of Bradford was crucial to its success.
- There were synergies between the ambitions of the economic strategy and the workforce needs of the health and care sector. For example the independent care sector locally employed over 14,000 people, predominantly in care delivery roles. The sector had significant growth potential to meet demand, but suffered from high staff turnover and challenging recruitment and retention issues, which undermined quality of service and economic value added. The need for a partnership approach to skills, routes into employment and development of the care workforce was agreed, and the potential for this to contribute to the economic strategy was recognised.
- Needed to look at plans to fill gaps in the Health and Social Care Workforce and how they fitted in with the priorities of the Economic Strategy.
- Employment Opportunities funding had helped hundreds of people into employment; this funding would be ending in 2019, needed to influence government on the benefits that this funding had delivered.
- It was noted that the West Yorkshire Combined Authority offered an opportunity to establish projects which would use money gathered through Business Rates to address systemic issues related to skills and economy. It was noted that a proposal was being developed which would focus on opportunities in the health and care sector.
- Members needed to consider how their organisations contributed to the priorities of the Economic Strategy.
- The West Yorkshire Police supported young people through the Safer Schools Partnership; West Yorkshire Police's contribution to the priorities of the Economic Strategy could be considered at the Community Safety Partnership's development day on10 May.





Resolved-

- (1) That a progress report be presented to the Board in 12 months time which includes information on:
 - Employment and skills funding and how to sustain it
 - How plans to fill gaps in the Health and Social Care Workforce can contribute to the achievement of employment targets within the Economic Strategy
 - Corporate responsibility of businesses (education covenant, procurement etc)
 - How Key Performance Indicators will be achieved (such as 20,000 more people into employment, 48,000 more people with NVQ3 Level Skills)
- (2) That an interim report be presented to the Board in July 2018 which reports on the plans to fill gaps in the Health and Social Care Workforce.

Action: Strategic Director, Health and Wellbeing

33. BRADFORD AND AIREDALE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Programme Director of Integration and Change Board submitted **Document** "**O**" which outlined proposed changes to the terms of reference of the Health and Wellbeing Board necessitated by changes to the role and remit of the Board in respect of two factors; firstly the focus of the Board on the wider determinants of health and wellbeing; secondly the changes to the governance arrangements of the Bradford District Partnership under which the Health and Wellbeing Board took additional responsibilities as the senior strategic partnership.

There was a short discussion on the involvement of the private sector and the independent care sector and their contribution to the work of the Board.

Resolved-

- (1) That the proposed changes to the Boards Terms of Reference (as detailed in Document "O") subject to the Membership being amended to "The Chief Executive of Bradford District Care NHS Foundation Trust" (m) and "One Member from the GP Community" (s).
- (2) That the Boards Terms of Reference be referred to the Governance and Audit Committee to be considered and referred to Council.





(3) That an Annual Conference be held so that the private sector could have their contribution into the work of the Board.

Action: Programme Director ICB/Interim City Solicitor

34. CHAIR'S HIGHLIGHT REPORT

The Health and Wellbeing Board Chair's highlight report **(Document "P")** summarised business conducted between Board meetings. April's report included Annual Reports of the Bradford Safeguarding Children Board (BSCB) and the Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB), update on progress on Healthy Bradford, update on the Liaison and Diversion project and the Board's sub-groups.

It was reported that a review on the safeguarding boards was being undertaken to ensure they were consistent and robust.

Members were informed that the Healthy Bradford Movement work had begun with a design agency to form a single brand to identify and bring together health messaging and to identify health activities to prevent ill health in order to help those with existing conditions care for themselves, this brand would be launched in October 2018.

It was reported that the Liaison and Diversion service sought to engage and assess service users at the point they entered the criminal justice system in order to ensure they were accessing support services and where possible were diverted from the criminal justice system, and prevented from escalating to high cost health and social care interventions and criminal justice system. The service was primarily a prevention service and following assessment would work with service users for up to a 12 week period. NHS England planned to roll out Liaison and Diversion coverage to the entire country over the next 2 years. West Yorkshire Police had agreed to support the identification of appropriate premises for the new team in Trafalgar House. The service would be staffed by a mix of people employed by different organisations, including third sector partners Bridge, Together Women Projects and Touchstone, healthcare professionals, police officers, and Youth Offending Team Officers.

In response to a Members question it was reported that the Liaison and Diversion Programme would complement the existing Mental Wellbeing Strategy.

A Member stressed that it was important to ensure that the work of the Liaison and Diversion Group did not duplicate work being undertaken by other agencies and that it added value.

It was suggested that the Liaison and Diversion Project Board could report to the Safer and Stronger Partnership Board as part of its governance arrangements.





Members suggested that the Liaison and Diversion Service consider how its work fitted in with the wider Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Resolved-

- (1) That the annual reports of the Bradford Safeguarding Children and Adults Boards be noted.
- (2) That Members note the updates and relevant areas of work being pursued in The Healthy Bradford Plan.
- (3) That the Health and Wellbeing Board note the introduction of the Liaison and Diversion Service (LDS) and asks the LDS to consider how its work fits in with the wider Health and Wellbeing Strategy.
- (4) That the Liaison and Diversion Project Board reporting to the Safer and Stronger Partnership Board as part of its governance arrangements be agreed.

Action: Programme Director ICB/Strategic Director Health and Wellbeing

35. CHAIR'S CLOSING REMARKS

The Chair thanked Bridget Fletcher and Nicola Lees for their participation on the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Councillor Val Slater was thanked for her valuable contribution as the Health and Wellbeing Portfolio and undertaking the role so competently.

Chair

Note: These minutes are subject to approval as a correct record at the next meeting of the Bradford and Airedale Health and Wellbeing Board.

THESE MINUTES HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



